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Introduction
"N e b ra ska  Historica l Ma rke rs" is a b ook of m aps displaying  the  st a t e ’s historica lly sig nifica nt place  m a rke rs b y
le g isla tive  district (or, in thre e  ca se s b e ca u se  of the  sm a ll size  of u rb a n districts, b y cou nty). For e ach m ap, I
se le ct e d thre e  m a rke rs to hig hlig ht b a se d on the  u niqu e ne ss of the  e ve nt, pe rsona lity, sit e , or tradition a nd its
contrib u t ion to the  N e b ra ska  story. For a com ple t e  list of st a t e  historica l m a rke rs b y le g isla tive  district, se e  the
inde x a t the  e nd of this b ook.  If a district is not inclu de d, it is b e ca u se  no historica l m a rke rs a re  loca t e d within
the  district. 

The  m aps we re  cre a t e d u sing  m apping  file s from  the  N e b ra ska  Historica l Socie ty, U.S. Ce nsu s Bu re a u , a nd U.S.
Ge olog ica l Su rve y. The  close  proxim ity of som e  m a rke rs re su lt e d in the m  appe a ring  “st a cke d” on the  m aps. In
those  ca se s, I m odifie d place m e nt to avoid st a cking  of m a rke rs. The  m aps fe a t u re  a re a listic topog ra phica l
b a ckg rou nd, cre a t e d u sing  a dig it a l e le va tion m ode l (DEM) de rive d from  the  N a tiona l Ele va tion Da t a se t 30 m e t e r
re solu tion lida r (lig ht de t e ction a nd ra ng ing ). Using  ArcMap softwa re , the  DEM wa s colore d with a topog ra phic
color ra m p a nd hillshade  e ffe ct to hig hlig ht cha ng e s in e le va tion. 

As the  GIS Ana lyst for the  Le g isla t u re ’s Re se a rch Office , I a m  ava ila b le  to t a ke  re qu e sts for m aps hig hlig hting
a re a s or issu e s of int e re st to se na tors a nd st a ff. You  ca n cont a ct m e  b y ca lling  402-471-0078 or b y e m a iling
cdu nn@le g .ne .g ov.

Dou b le -post historica l m a rke r, (photo b y C. Du nn)

P la qu e  historica l m a rke r, (photo from  Encyclope dia of N e b ra ska  History online

The  N e b ra ska  Historica l Socie ty de t e rm ine s whe the r historica l e ve nts, pe rsona litie s, sit e s, or traditions a re  of
im port a nce  to the  st a t e . The  socie ty acce pts proposa ls, ve rifie s the  history, a nd m a int a ins the  list of historica l
m a rke rs. P e rsona litie s a re  conside re d for a m a rke r if the  individu a l m ade  a st a t e wide  or na tiona l im pact on
history. Sing le  b u ilding s a re  e lig ib le  for a m a rke r if the  b u ilding  had a n im pact on a na tiona l, st a t e , cou nty,
or com m u nity le ve l.

Mu nicipa litie s a nd int e re st g rou ps g e ne ra lly nom ina t e  a nd pay for the  m a rke rs. N om ina tors su g g e st the
m a rke r’s t e xt, which the  socie ty m u st approve  b e fore  the  m a rke r is ca st in a lu m inu m . Ma rke rs a re  u su a lly place d
on pu b lic la nd. On ra re  occa sion whe n m a rke rs a re  place d on priva t e  la nd, it is with the  approva l of the  socie ty
a nd la ndowne r. Sponsoring  e ntitie s re ce ive  cre dit on the  b ot tom  of the  m a rke r.

Historica l m a rke rs com e  in thre e  type s: a dou b le  post, a sing le  post, a nd a pla qu e . The  dou b le  post is the  la rg e st
of the  m a rke rs, with space  for 180 words; the  sing le  post is the  sm a lle st, with room  for 80 words. Ma rke rs cost
b e twe e n $1,950 a nd $5,300 to ca st a nd ship to the  sit e . Ma rke rs a re  b u ilt a nd physica lly m a int a ine d b y the
De pa rtm e nt of Roads. The  de pa rtm e nt a lso de t e rm ine s whe re  m a rke rs a re  spe cifica lly place d, a proce ss tha t
t a ke s into accou nt the  sa fe ty of hig hway m otorists. 

How are historical markers chosen?

Casey Dunn, GIS Ana lyst

Sing le -post historica l m a rke r, (photo b y C.Du nn)
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Historical Highlights

                                                                                                                                                  Passage of
the Kan sas-Nebraska Act in  1854 created the Nebraska an d Kan sas territories, open in g an  expan se of
lan d that required surveyin g before settlers could claim  property. T he Fortieth Parallel was used as the
baselin e an d border between  Nebraska an d Kan sas. Lan d was surveyed westward from  a cast iron
m on um en t den otin g the location  of the Fortieth Parallel on  a bluff alon g the Missouri River. T he
survey was com pleted in  1883. T he corn ers set by the survey con tin ue to be referen ced in  all lan d
tran saction s within  Nebraska.

(367) Point of Beginning of the Public Land Surveys of the Sixth Principal Meridian.

                                  In  1883, a “vein  of petroleum ” foun d in  Richardson  Coun ty becam e the first
publiciz ed oil strike in  Nebraska. Oil drillers did n ot produce a successful well in  Nebraska, however,
un til 1940, when  a Richardson  Coun ty well produced 169½ barrels a day for the first 60 days of
production . T he well, Bucholz  No. 1, qualified for a bon us of $15,000 offered by the Nebraska Legislature 
for the first oil well to produce at least 50 barrels for 60 con secutive days.  

(79) First Oil Well.

                                       Early fur traders m arried in to In dian  tribes, producin g children  whose lan d rights
were en dan gered as In dian s ceded lan d to the U.S. govern m en t. T he Prairie du Chien  T reaty set aside a
tract of lan d for the m ixed heritage children  of the Otoe, Iowa, Om aha, an d San tee Sioux tribes. T he
tract was located between  the Great an d Little Nem aha rivers. T he lan d ow n ers within  the tract were
n ever required to live on  the property, an d m an y sold their lan d to white settlers.

(58) Half-Breed Tract.
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Historical Highlights
                                                                                                                 As
the nation readied for the impending Civil War in the spring of 1861, Dr.
Robert R. Livingston organized a company of infantry in Plattsmouth.
Livingston was elected captain of the company, and on June 11, 1861, it
was mustered as Company A, First Nebraska Volunteer Infantry. The
regiment participated in battles in the South, including Fort Donelson and
Shiloh in Tennessee.

(242) Company A, First Nebraska Volunteer Infantry, 1861-1866.

                                                  The Board of Fish Commissioners,
precursor to the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission, contracted with
the Santee Hatchery to propagate fish at their private facility near Gretna.
The commission bought the hatchery and adjoining land in 1882. An ample
supply of spring water, which still feeds the ponds above the hatchery, led
to the site's selection.

(284) Gretna Fish Hatchery.

                                                   From 1050 to 1400, prehistoric Indian
farmers lived in small villages and isolated farmsteads in the lower Platte
and Missouri River valleys. These early inhabitants lived in earth lodges
containing fireplaces, beds, storage areas, and trash pits. The site contains
a rare prehistoric cemetery. Archeological evidence indicates the Indians
left their dead to decompose in the elements until only bones remained,
when they would be buried in a communal burial ground. This tradition
indicates their culture held the afterlife in high regard.

(314) Prehistoric Burial Site. 
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Historical Highlights

                                             The Bellevue Log Cabin was built in 1835 in the Missouri River floodplain, moved to higher ground to escape a cholera
outbreak, and moved to its current location in 1850, where it served as a private residence until 1954. The original structure was a one-and-one-half-
story building with a dirt floor, hand-hewn cottonwood logs packed with mud, and a fireplace. 

(186) Bellevue Log Cabin.

                                       The Fontenelle Bank was built in 1856 and failed, as did most poorly backed wildcat banks, during the financial panic of 1857.
The building served a succession of uses, including, for a time, as the Sarpy County courthouse. Eventually, the city of Bellevue purchased the bank
and restored it with the help of a federal grant in 1972.

(51) Fontenelle Bank.

                                 Missionary Moses Merrill reached Bellevue in 1833. His visit to a nearby Otoe village led him to establish a mission in an early
attempt to bring Christiantiy to the Otoe and Missouri Indians. By 1835, the mission consisted of a log cabin and a schoolhouse near the Platte River.
Led by Chief Itan, some Otoe and Missouri built a village nearby. Chief Itan was killed in a dispute and his successor was unable to maintain the village. 

(10) Otoe Mission.
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Historical Highlights
                                        Morm ons fleeing religiou s persec u tion estab lish ed th eir Winter Q u arters in th e winter of 1846-1847 near wh at is now Florence. Som e 600 of th e m ore th an 3,000 persons wh o overwintered in h astily
erected log cab ins, sod h ou ses, and du g ou ts died for lack of su f ficient provisions. Ultim ately, Winter Q u arters b ecam e th e adm inistration center for th e Morm on m ig ration to th e Great Salt Lake Valley.
(19) Winter Quarters.

(310) Malcolm "X".                                    Malc olm  X, b orn Malc olm  Little in Om ah a in 1925, b ecam e a leader in th e civil rig h ts m ovem ent of th e 1960s. His fam ily was forced to flee th e state after receiving death  th reats for h is fath er’s work
organizing th e Universal Neg ro Im provem ent Association. Wh ile serving a prison term  for b u rg lary, Malc olm  X converted to th e Nation of Islam . He c h anged h is nam e u pon leaving prison. Du ring a pilg rim age to Mec ca.
Malc olm  X converted to Su nni Islam  and em b raced th e concepts of h u m an b roth erh ood and international cooperation. Malc olm  X was assassinated Feb ru ary 21, 1965.
(414) Chief Standing Bear.                                                Th e Ponca Trib e was forced from  th eir Neb raska h om eland to Indian Territory (present-day Oklah om a) in 1877, a 500-m ile jou rney b y foot du ring wh ic h  m any died. Ch ief Standing Bear led a
sm all b and on a retu rn trip to b u ry h is son in Neb raska in Janu ary 1879. Bu t th e g rou p was captu red and im prisoned at Fort Om ah a. Th e ensu ing trial of Ch ief Standing Bear b ecam e a landm ark case, wh ic h  resu lted in th e
ru ling th at Am erican Indians were “persons with in th e m eaning of th e law.”

1:140,000

0 1.5 3 4.50.75 Miles
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Historical Highlights
                                              The Pa w n ee Tribe o n ce n umbered more tha n  10,000 p eo p le. From
1850 to 1859, Pa w n ee In dia n s lived in  ea rth-lodge villages in  a n d n ear Dodge Co un ty. Pa-huk’
hill, a sa cred p lace for Pa w n ees, is n ea r this marker. In  1875, the Pa w n ee left Nebra ska  a n d
mo ved to In dia n  Territory in  p resen t-da y Oklahoma .

(88) The Pawnee Villages.

(496) Dodge County Poor Farm.                                                          The Dodge Co un ty Po or Farm w a s esta blished in  1872 to
p ro vide relief for the n eedy. By 1888, the farm en comp a ssed 245 acres a n d w a s o verseen  by
p a id stew a rds. After 1935, federal a n d sta te old-age in sura n ce reduced the n eed for co un ty a id
to the in digen t. The la st of the more tha n  400 residen ts died in  1944 a n d the farm w a s sold
in  1955.

µ 0 2 4 61 Miles 1:160,000

(183) The Great Platte River Route West.                                                                        The Pla tte River crea ted a n a tural o verla n d ro ute
for tra velers headin g west from 1830 to the 1860s.  Stageco a ches, railw a ys, a n d telegra p h lin es
a ll follo wed this ro ute durin g territoria l Nebra ska ’s fro n tier da ys. In  the 20th cen tury, the ro ute
became U.S. Highw a y 30, also kn o w n  a s the Lin coln  Highw a y, the first tra n sco n tin en ta l ro a d.
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Historical Highlights
                                Fo rt Atkinso n w a s esta blished a s a  perm a nen t o utpo st in 1820, o n the site o f Lewis a nd Cla rk’s co uncil
with the Oto e a nd Misso uri India n s. The la rgest a nd stro ngest o utpo st n o rth o f St. Lo uis, the fo rt pro tected the fro n tier’s
develo ping co m m erce a nd sa w the building o f a  scho o l, sa w m ill, brickya rd, a nd grist m ill during its sho rt existence. Fo rt
Atkinso n w a s a ba ndo ned in 1827. 

                                                During the m id-19th century, stea m bo a ts pla yed a m a jo r ro le in the  settlem ent a nd
develo pm ent o f the n a tio n. In Ma rch 1865, the                depa rted St. Lo uis bo und fo r m ining to w n s in the Mo n ta n a  Territo ry.
On April 1, the fully laden stea m bo a t hit a sn a g nea r the village o f DeSo to , Nebra ska  Territo ry, a nd sa nk in 10 m in utes, but
with n o  lo ss o f life. The site is n o w pa rt o f the Deso to  Na tio n a l Wildlife Refuge a nd is o n the Na tio n a l Register o f Histo ric
Places. Salvo rs exca va ted the wreck in 1968-69, reco vering 150 to n s o f ca rgo .

                                                 The Lo ga n Creek Site is a n a rcha eo lo gical preserve nea r Lo ga n Creek, n a m ed fo r Om a ha  Chief
Lo ga n Fo n tenelle. The site is co m prised o f nine stra tified cultura l zo nes, extending a s fa r a s 12 feet undergro und. Po ttery
a ttributed to  a  Plains Wo o dla nd peo ple, who  were the first po ttery m a kers in Nebra ska , is fo und in the upperm o st zo ne. At
lea st five o f the lo wer la yers m a y represent a  distinct culture kn o w n a s the Lo ga n Creek Co m plex. Mem bers o f these
hunter-ga ther gro ups perio dically ca m ped here between 6,000 a nd 8,000 yea rs a go .

(2) Fort Atkinson.

(151) The Logan Creek Site.

(137) Steamboat Bertrand.
Bertra nd
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                                   Ton wan ton g a (Larg e V illag e) played an  im portan t role in  In dian  an d exploratory h istory. An  estim ated 1,100 Om ah a In dian s lead by
Ch ief Blackbird lived in  th is earth -lodg e villag e circa 1795. Man y explorers an d fur traders visited th e villag e, th e Span ish  built a h eavily fortified fort
n earby, an d Lewis an d Clark visited  in  1804. In  1800, a sm allpox outbreak killed Ch ief Blackbird an d som e 400 villag ers.

                                           In  early 1865, about 75 m em bers of th e Win n ebag o Tribe en listed in  th e Nebraska V olun teers. Th ey becam e kn ow n  as Com pan y
“A”, Om ah a Scouts, an d participated in  suppressin g  th e In dian  uprisin g  of 1865 an d 1866. Th e return in g  Win n ebag o veteran s were welcom ed with  a
h om ecom in g  festival. Th is festival becam e an  an n ual m em orial celebration  for Ch ief Little Priest, w h o died from  battle woun ds sh ortly after return in g  h om e. 

                                 “Om ah a” m ean s “ th ose g oin g  ag ain st th e win d or curren t” an d m ay refer to a h istoric m ig ration  up th e Missouri River by an cestors of
th e presen t-day Om ah a. Lon g  before w h ite settlers cam e to th e Great Plain s, th e Om ah a m ain tain ed a h om elan d in  n orth eastern  Nebraska an d n orth western
Iowa. In  1854, th e Om ah a ceded all of its h om elan d to th e U.S. g overn m en t except for th e tribe’s reservation  lan d. 

(13) Tonwantonga. 

(44) Winnebago Scouts.

(71) Omaha Tribe.
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Historical Highlights
                                In late July 1859, Nebraska Territorial Militia and U.S. Army Dragoons, totaling 300 men,
prepared to attack a large Pawnee Village. Alerted, the Pawnee immediately surrendered, abruptly ending the
Pawnee War of 1859. The war began on July 1, 1859, after reports of Pawnee aggression toward settlers in the
Elkhorn Valley reached the territorial capital of Omaha. Although no battle occurred, the stream where the
surrender took place became known as Battle Creek.

                                                                                           The Norfolk Brick and Tile Co. was formed in 1888 and
operated until 1907, when the the quality of the clay found in the area declined. The factory buildings were
demolished and, in 1916, the area became a private park. The park was deeded to the city of Norfolk in 1959
and then the Elkhorn Valley Historical Society in 1986. 

                                                       Built in 1869, this house is a rare product of Czech-American culture. The
structure is a masterpiece of ancient Slavic carpentry skills so old they are rare in Europe. The Czech
technique is distinguished from similar methods by the use of thin planks set within a post-and-beam frame.
Known as post-and-panel construction, this is the only known example in Nebraska.

(94) Battle Creek.

(356) Norfolk Brick and Tile Company, Verges Park.

(439) The Skala Timber House.
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S T A N T O N
                                               Frank  and Luther North of Colum bus led the legendary Pawnee Scouts. T he
Pawnee, eager to join the U.S. Arm y against the Sioux  and Cheyenne, were organized into a fighting unit
in 1864. T he Pawnee Scouts participated in the Powder River Cam paigns of 1865 and 1876-1877 and the
Republican River Cam paign of 1869. Frank  North, k now n as Pani Leshar or Pawnee Chief, was revered by
the Indian soldiers. When the Pawnee were relocated to Ok lahom a in 1875, the brothers rem ained in
Colum bus.

                                                     In 1720, an ill-fated Spanish m ilitary ex pedition led by Sir Pedro de
Villasur set out from  Santa Fe intending to spy on French activities near the Missouri River. T he Spanish
forces encountered a large band of Pawnee and Otoe Indians near present day Schuyler. T he Spaniards
retreated, but the French-aligned Indian groups found and k illed m ost of the ex pedition. T his event
represents the greatest loss of life suffered by white m en against Indians on Nebrask a soil and the
farthest north the Spanish ex plored on the Great Plains.

                                                                              Andrew Jack son Higgins was the inventor and producer
of the “Higgins boat,” which was the landing craft used by the U.S. in am phibious invasions, specifically 
D-Day in 1944 and throughout the Korean and Vietnam  wars.

Historical Highlights
(100) The North Brothers.

(305) The Villasur Expedition.

(424) Andrew Jackson Higgins (1886-1952).
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Historical Highlights

(266) Giant Glacial Boulder.                                                 The boulder is one of the largest “erratics” deposited in the Belmont area of Lincoln as
continental glaciers receded thousands of years ago. The boulder is composed of S ioux  sandstone and quartzite. Glaciers
covered Nebraska during the Great Ice Age, coming from the north and east. 

µ 1:230,000
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(90) Nebraska Statehood Memorial.                                                                 The Legislature designated the Kennard House as the Nebraska S tatehood Memorial
in 1968. The house was home to Nebraska’s first S ecretary of S tate, Thomas P. Kennard. Kennard, Governor David Butler, and
Auditor John Gillespie comprised the Capitol Commission, whose task in 1867 was to select a new site for the state capitol. All
three members of the commission built ornate homes w ithin the original plat of Lincoln, testimony to their confidence in the
new capital city. Only the Kennard House still stands. It is considered one of the finest remaining Nebraska examples of
Italianate domestic architecture, a leading American style during Nebraska’s pioneer period. 

(290) Pershing Rifles.                                       Before commanding American Ex peditionary Forces in Europe during World War I, General John J.
Pershing was professor of Military S ciences at the University of Nebraska. In a successful effort to improve morale of the
Reserve Officers Training Corps, Pershing created an elite drill team that became know n as the S ociety of Pershing Rifles. 
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B U T L E R
S A U N D E R S

                                           Begin ning in the 1840s, the Ox-Bo w Trail carried tho usands o f im m igrants and m illio n s o f po unds o f freight destined fo r settlem en ts, m ining
cam ps, o r m ilitary po sts o f the W est. The trail was nam ed fo r its shape, which lo o ped n o rth fro m  Plattsm o uth and Nebraska City to  the Platte River. Once m o re direct ro utes
were laid o ut in the 1860s, use o f the Ox-Bo w Trail declined.

                                   Shin n’s Ferry was o perated by Mo ses and Dick Shinn o n the Platte River near Savan nah, the first Butler Co un ty seat, fro m  1859 un til 1872, when a bridge
was built at Schuyler. Tho usands o f wago n s and travelers cro ssed o n the ferry during this tim e. Ho wever, the dem ise o f the ferry and the rem o val o f the co un ty seat to  David City
do o m ed Savan nah. No  trace o f the to w n exists to day. 

                                                                           W hen it was co m pleted in 1898, the Arm o ur and Co m pany Iceho use was o ne o f the largest in the U.S. Each fall, w o rkers filled a
m an-m ade lake and began harvesting ice o nce the lake fro ze to  a depth o f eight inches. Ice blo cks were sto red in ice ro o m s packed in sawdust un til the ice was used in
refrigerated rail cars and m eatpacking plants. During the busy seaso n, it was n o t unco m m o n to  ship 100 o r m o re cars filled with ice. The iceho use burned in 1921. 

Historical Highlights

(409) The Armour and Company Icehouse.

(252) Shinn's Ferry.

(219) The Ox-Bow Trail. 
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P O L K

Y O R K S E W A R D

                                             On January 2, 1863, Ro bert T . Gale filed the first ho m estead patent in Seward Co un ty, where he settled with his wife
and their infant daug hter. T heir sto ry is a testam en t to  the hardships o f the state's early settlers. T he fam ily was nearly washed away in a flo o d that
destro yed their ho m e and livesto ck. Just as the city o f Seward was fo rm in g  in 1868, Ro bert died, fo llo wed by their baby g irl, bo th o f tuberculo sis.
Am elia later m o ved to  Oreg o n. T he fam ily burial g ro und was fo und a century later anlo n g  with letters by Am elia describin g  the fam ily's  sto ry. 

                                                       Nearly co n tin uo usly since 1868, Seward has spo n so red an an n ual 4th o f July Celebratio n. Go vern o r J. Jam es Exo n
declared Seward “Nebraska’s Official 4th o f July City” in 1973. In 1976, Seward was cited by the Am erican Revo lutio n Bicenten nial o fficials. 

                                                                                           Stro m sburg  is nam ed fo r the m an who  w o uld beco m e its m ayo r. In 1870, Lewis Headstro m
selected the to w n site fo r Stro m sburg , which was platted in 1872. T he nam e is derived fro m  Lewis Headstro m ’s surnam e and “burg ,” m eanin g
“ villag e o n the hill” in Swedish. Stro m sburg  was inco rpo rated as a seco nd-class city in 1888.  In 1966 Go vern o r Frank Mo rriso n declared the to w n
the “Swede Capital o f Nebraska.” Many Stro m sburg  citizens celebrate their Swedish heritag e with an an n ual festival.

Historical Highlights

(328) Stromsburg - The Swede Capital of Nebraska.

(221) Seward - 4th of July City.

(179) Plum Creek Prairie. 
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                                                  President Abraham  Lincoln signed the Hom estead Act on May  20, 1862, granting heads
of fam ilies 160 acres of land for a filing fee and the prom ise to live on the claim ed land for five y ears. No single act had
m ore effect on the Middle West and Great Plains. T he action brought thousands of land-hungry  pioneers, freem en, and 
im m igrants to the region. T he Hom estead National Monum ent of Am erica, located on the Daniel Freem an hom estead,
is part of the National Park  Sy stem . 

                                                                  When Nebrask a becam e a territory , the Otoe and Missouri Indians relinquished
their land along the Platte River in exchange for goods and a reservation centered around the site of their largest village.
T he Indian agency  was also located nearby . In 1870, Indian Agent Major A. L. Green described the village as being
com prised of a com bination school and church, 40 earth lodges, several bark  houses and tipis. A black sm ith, steam
powered saw m ill, and grist m ill sat south of the village. T he tribes relocated to  Indian T erritory  in Ok lahom a by  1881 and
the reservation lands were sold off. 

                                             Ben Halliday , owner of an express com pany  with governm ent contracts to carry  m ail and
passengers from  the Missouri River to California, ordered the Ok eto Cutoff to be laid out after the town of Mary sville
refused to im prove the Fort Leavenw orth-Fort Kearny  Military  Road. From  October 1862 until March 1863, stagecoaches
traveled along the Ok eto Cutoff, which, although a m ore direct route, could not com pete with the Military  Road’s
popularity .

Historical Highlights
(7) Homestead Movement.

(214) The Otoe and Missouri Agency.

(413) The Oketo Cutoff.
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                                                                                     The a va ila bility of suita ble buildin g ma teria l w a s of
grea t imp o rta n ce to Nebra ska ’s p io n eer settlers. Jefferso n  Co un ty used n a tive limesto n e fo r buildin g a n d
the sto n e w a s burn ed in  kiln s to crea te mo rta r a n d whitew a sh. The limekiln  a t this site w a s built in  1874 by
Wo ra l C. Smith, but the U.S. Army rep o rtedly o p era ted the first kiln  in  this a rea  durin g the co n structio n  of
Fo rt Kea rn y in  1848. 

                                                      Nebra ska  w a s a  leader in  the Cha uta uqua  mo vemen t, which bro ught
culture a n d en terta in men t to rura l America thro ugh the 1920s. The movemen t bega n  in   1874 in
Cha uta uqua , New Yo rk, a n d sp rea d a cro ss America. The Crete Cha uta uqua  w a s fo un ded in  1883 a n d
a ttra cted cro wds of up  to 5,000 p eo p le durin g the 10-da y summer sessio n s. To p ics in cluded religio n ,
p olitics, a n d en terta in men t, with William Jen n in gs Brya n  a n d the Negro Sla yto n  Jubilee Sin gers a mo n g the
p o p ula r a ttra ctio n s. Backers dissolved the Crete Cha uta uqua  in  1898 beca use of fin a n cia l lo sses a fter
o ther a ssemblies to ok p la ce in  Lin coln , Bea trice, a n d Lo n g Pin e. 

                                                  On  Ja n ua ry 12, 1888, a blizza rd struck Nebra ska  with gale win ds, blin din g
sn o w, a n d ra p idly fallin g temp era tures. While other sto rms p roduced colder temp era tures a n d grea ter
a mo un ts of sn o w, the combin a tio n  a n d timin g made the Blizza rd of 1888 much mo re da n gero us a n d
deadly. The blizza rd bega n  sudden ly, while ma n y children  were a w a y from home in  o n e-ro om scho olho uses,
a n d la sted 18 hours.  

Historical Highlights
(121) The Smith Limekiln and Limestone House.

(175) Nebraska Chautauquas.

(247) The Blizzard of 1888.
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                                       Beg inning  in Ind epend ence, Missouri, the Oreg on Trail followed  the Kansas R iv er
west, then the Little Blue R iv er north into Nebraska to the Platte R iv er, and  c onnec ted  to the Platte R iv er
Valley road way. An estim ated  quarter of a m illion pioneers used  th is route in the 25 years after the first
wag ons trav eled  on the Oreg on Trail in 1841. Wh ile Oreg on was an early g oal for trav elers on the Oreg on
Trail, the ‘49’ers trekked  to California, and  the Pony Express and  m ilitary exped itions used  th is route as well.

                                                          The U.S. Nav al Am m unition Depot (NAD) was the Nav y’s larg est World
War II inland  m unitions d epot, cov ering  49,000 acres in Ad am s and  Clay counties. Built in 1942, NAD
em ployed  10,000 m ilitary and  c iv ilian workers by V-J Day in 1945. At one point d uring  WWII, NAD prod uced
alm ost 40 percent of the Nav y’s ord nance. NAD cost $71 m illion to build  and  inc lud ed  207 m iles of railroad
track, 274 m iles of road , and  2,200 build ing s. In 1944, an explosion killed  nine, wound ed  53, and  left a 
550-foot-long  c rater. NAD closed  in 1966. 

                                        The Big  Bend  of the Platte R iv er is one of the m ost im portant habitat areas for the
spring  m ig ration of the world ’s larg est population of Sand h ill c ranes. Sand h ill c rane rem ains hav e
been found  in nine-m illion-year-old  d eposits in western Nebraska and  in preh istoric and  h istoric Nativ e
Am erican sites th roug h out the Central Plains.

Historical Highlights
(9) The Oregon Trail. 

(366) Naval Ammunition Depot. 

(389) Sandhill Cranes.
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H A M I L T O N

H A L L

                                                        Having left Winter Quarters, several hundred Morm on pioneers cam ped near here
on their trek  to the Great Salt Lak e Valley in 1847. The first group of 148 travelers was led by Brigham  Young. Between
1855 and 1860, several thousand Morm ons m ade the 1,300-m ile journey on foot using handcarts to transport their
possessions across the prairie. Overpowered by sum m er heat or caught in the cold of prairie blizzards, hundreds of them
lie buried in unm ark ed graves along the trail. 

                             As early as 1833, travelers noted a solitary cottonw ood tree as a Platte River landm ark . Standing on
the north side of the Platte River, the tree was visible from  great distances. Som e accounts estim ated the tree could be
seen for 20 m iles. The tree stood about 50 feet tall, w ith a circum ference of between 10 to 12 feet. The Morm on Trail and
the Om aha-Fort Kearny stage route passed by the tree. Travelers w ould often cam p beneath its canopy and carve their
initials on the trunk , lik ely speeding the tree’s dem ise in 1863. A severe storm  in 1865 felled the landm ark . In 1911
the residents of Merrick  County erected a stone in the shape of a tree trunk  on the site once occupied by Lone Tree.

                                                           On February 25, 1944, a B-17G bom ber from  the Grand Island Arm y Airfield crashed
on the Langenheder farm , k illing nine aboard. The Grand Island base served as a training location for aircrew s prior to
leaving for overseas duty. The B-17 was on a training flight in the early m orning hours, when it crashed shortly after
tak eoff. The plane slid across a field, struck  a berm  nex t to an irrigation ditch, and ex ploded. The m ark er m em orializes
the m ore than 15,500 Arm y Air Forces airm en who died in nearly 6,350 aircraft training accidents in the U .S. during
World War II.

Historical Highlights

(92) Lone Tree. 

(27) Mormon Pioneer Campsite.

(163) B-17G Bomber Crash, 1944.

µ 1:360,0000 3.5 7 10.51.75
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Historical Highlights
                                     In 1862, th e O.K. Store was opened by Henry Koenig and Fred Wiebe near th e Morm on T rail in
Grand Island City. It was th e first store in th e settlem ent and also served as th e telegraph  station. During th e Indian
uprising of 1864 and 1865, th e O.K. Store was fortified w ith  sod and sh eltered 168 m en and wom en. General S.R. Curtis
and h is troops visited “Fort O.K.” on August 22, 1865. Im pressed by th e settlers’ preparations Curtis left a six -pounder
cannon for th eir defense.

                                    Probably discovered by French  fur traders in th e late 1700s, th e large island in th e Platte River was
a well-k now n landm ark  for fur traders by 1810. Both  th e Long and Frem ont ex peditions of 1820 and 1842, respectively,
noted th e size of Grand Island. Westbound travelers of th e 1830s often m entioned th e island as th e m ost conspicuous
feature of th e Central Platte Valley. Grand Island was ceded to th e United States governm ent by th e Pawnee in 1848.
 
                                            T h e Lincoln High way Association set a goal to develop a paved, toll-free, transcontinental
h igh way from  New York  City to San Francisco. In order to reach  th is goal, th e association developed th e Seedling Mile
program , w h ich  paved portions of road to “seed” th e roadway. Grand Island becam e th e second city in th e United States
to build such  an exam ple of concrete roadway, w h ich  it com pleted in late 1915. Realignm ent of th e h igh way in 1931
allowed th is section to be preserved. It is th e only rem aining original section of a concrete Seedling Mile th at h as not
been w idened or covered w ith  asph alt.

(54) The O.K. Store.

(55) La Grande Isle.

(482) The Seedling Mile. 
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Historical High ligh ts
                                             T he  100th Me ridian is the  100th longitudinal line  w e st of Gre e nwich, England. Congre ss se t
re aching this point as a major goal of the  first transcontine ntal railroad. T he  Union Pacific accomplishe d this on Octobe r 5,
1866.  In 1879, the  U.S. Ge ological Surve y re cognize d the  100th Me ridian as the  natural de marcation line  be tw e e n the
humid East and the  arid We st. Evaporation from the  Gulf of Me x ico supplie s most of the  rainfall for the  e aste rn half of the
Unite d State s, while  most of the  pre cipitation for the  w e ste rn half come s from the  Pacific, an  insufficie nt source  for
agriculture  without irrigation in Ne braska.

                                                           One  of the  many Sw e dish se ttle me nts in Ne braska during the  late  19th ce ntury was
north of Gothe nburg in northw e ste rn Daw son County. An e nduring symbol of this se ttle me nt is Sw e dish Crosse s Ce me te ry,
whe re  thre e  childre n are  burie d. T he se  unique  grave  marke rs w e re  made  in a traditional Sw e dish style  be tw e e n 1885 and
1889 by the  childre n's grandfathe r.
 
                                              T he  U.S. Army’s Post South Loup Fork was a small outpost of Fort Ke arny e stablishe d in May
1865 by the  Se ve nth Iowa Cavalry. T he  post monitore d the  move me nts of Indians in the  Loup Rive r valle ys. T he  post
was abandone d in 1871 whe n the  First Ne braska Cavalry re place d the  Iowa cavalry. Pione e r se ttle rs from Gibbon use d the
log buildings for fire w ood. According to le ge nd, the  post be came  know n as “Fort De solation” be cause  it was about 30 mile s
from any se ttle me nt.  “Fort Banishme nt” was anothe r nickname  base d on tale s that soldie rs w e re  se nt the re  as punishme nt
for ste aling commissary whisky, although military re cords do not confirm this.

(17) Th e 100th  Meridian.

(350) Swedish  Crosses Cemetery. 

(361) “Fort Banish ment.”
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(125) University of Nebraska at Kearney.

(148) Kearney Cotton Mill.

(407) The Huntsman's Echo.

Historical Highlights
                                                                        In  1903, the Legisla ture a p p ro p ria ted 
$50,000 to esta blish a sta te n orma l scho ol in  cen tra l or western  Nebra ska . The Sta te
Bo a rd of Educa tio n  cho se Kea rn ey a s the site a n d the city do n a ted 20 acres o n  the west
side of to w n . Nin ety-six studen ts en rolled for the first cla sses a t Kea rn ey Sta te Normal
Scho ol in  the summer of 1905. The scho ol beca me a  fo ur-yea r college in  1921 a n d w a s
ren a med the Nebra ska  Sta te Tea chers College a t Kea rn ey. In  1991, the scho ol beca me
p a rt of the Un iversity of Nebra ska  system.

                                               Comp leted in  1892, the Kea rn ey Co tto n  Mill w a s the
la rgest ma n ufa cturin g p la n t in  Nebra ska . The tw o-story brick structure co st more tha n
$400,000 to build. At its p ea k, the mill emp lo yed a bo ut 450 w orkers a n d p roduced
26,000 ya rds of un blea ched muslin  a  da y from ra w co tto n  ship p ed by barge a n d
ra ilro a d from the So uth. The mill, which n ever turn ed a  p rofit, w a s clo sed in  1901. The
mill w a s destro yed by fire in  1902.
 
                                                   In  Ap ril 1860, Josep h E. John so n , a  Mormo n , esta blished
a ro a d ra n ch a n d bega n  p ublishin g Nebra ska ’s first n ew sp a p er w est of Omaha  ca lled
The Hun tsma n ’s Echo. The p a p er, with a mo tto of “In dep en den t in  Everythin g, Neutra l
in  No thin g,” discussed the Nebra ska  scen e in  a  vigoro us a n d breezy style. The la st issue
of The Hun tsma n ’s Echo w a s p ublished in  August 1861.
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Historical Highlights
                                                                 Nine -year-old  Willa Cath e r m ove d  w ith  h e r fam ily to 
Webste r County from  Virginia in 1883. S h e  base d  h e r nove ls on th e  early pione e rs’ life on th e
prairie . Th e  610-acre Willa Cath e r Me m orial Prairie  pre se rve s an e x am ple of th e  native  grassland
th at once cove re d  Nebrask a. 

                                  Th e  U.S . gove rnm e nt e stablish e d  m ilitary posts across th e  We st to prote ct
pione e rs. Fort Kearny was th e  first post e stablish e d  in th e  spring of 1848 along th e  Platte  Rive r. At
first calle d  Fort Ch ild s, th e  outpost was re nam e d  to h onor Ge ne ral S te ph e n Watts Kearny. By th e  
1860s, Fort Kearny h ad  becom e  a significant fre igh ting station and  se rve d  as h om e  station of th e  
Pony Ex pre ss. Alth ough  ne ve r attack e d  d uring th e  Ind ian Wars of 1864-1865, th e  fort se rve d  as a
outfitting d e pot for se ve ral Ind ian cam paigns.  Fort Kearny close d  as a m ilitary post in 1871.
 
                                                        On March  27, 1879, Ge orge G. Meas Post 19, Grand  Arm y of th e  
Re public (GAR), De partm e nt of Nebrask a, was found e d  in S utton by 20 form e r Union sold ie rs. Th e
GAR was a national frate rnal organization create d  to provid e  for th e  w e lfare of Union ve te rans of 
th e  Civil War, th e ir w id ow s and  orph ans, and  to k e e p alive  m e m orie s of wartim e  sacrifice s. In 1909, 
a granite  base was laid , but th e  m onum e nt was ne ve r finish e d . A bronze statue  of a Civil War sold ie r
was com m issione d  in 2001, w h ich  finally com ple te d  th e  m onum e nt to Union S old ie rs.

(176) Willa Cather Mem orial Prairie.

(229) Fort Kearny.

(422) The Soldiers’ Monum ent. 
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Historical Hig hlig hts
                               Po nca  India n s lived in this a rea  o f n o rthea st Nebra ska  since the ea rliest reco rded histo ry. In 1868, the federal
go vern m ent signed the Trea ty o f Fo rt La ra m ie, which tra n sferred the la nd to  the Sio ux witho ut the perm issio n o f the Po nca , who  ha d
been gua ra n teed their la nd by trea ties signed with the U.S. go vern m ent in 1858. The Po nca  were fo rcibly rem o ved to  India n Territo ry
in Oklaho m a  in 1877. Un a ble to  a djust to  the new clim a te, m a n y Po nca  died in the So uth.

                                              The Lewis a nd Cla rk Expeditio n n o ted a ta ll bluff tha t a ppea red to  ha ve been o n fire a nd w a s still very ho t.
La ter, fur tra ders frequently n o ticed dense sm o ke a nd fire in the a rea. In 1839, J.N. Nico llet theo rized tha t the deco m po sitio n o f iro n
pyrites, in co n ta ct with w a ter, resulted in a  hea t ca pa ble o f igniting o ther co m bustible m a teria ls. Lo ca l settlers co n tinued to  ca ll the
bluff the “Io nia  vo lca n o ,” un a w a re o f Nico llet’s theo ry. An ea rthqua ke in 1877 a ro used new fea rs o f a n im pending vo lca nic eruptio n. By
1878, the Misso uri River underm ined the bluffs a nd a  la rge sectio n o f the “vo lca n o ” fell into  the river. 

                                         The Sa vidge bro thers co nducted experim en ts in flight with a hea vier-tha n-a ir vehicle. Befo re 1907, the Sa vidge
bro thers bega n studying ha wks a nd built m o del gliders, full-size gliders, a nd a  self-po wered airpla ne. In 1911, the bro thers held a
public dem o n stra tio n o f their self-po wered pla ne. One o f the bro thers w a s a m o ng the first to  develo p a  m etho d o f skyw riting. The
bro thers ba rn sto rm ed thro ugho ut the Midwest fro m  1911 un til 1916, when o ne bro ther died during a test flight.

(68) The Ionia “Volcano.”

(76) Aviation Pioneers.

(62) Ponca Tribe.
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Historical Highlights
                                 In 1877, Ed Wright began to m ine chalk  from  the white chalk  bluffs in the North Loup Valley .
Wright used stone cut from  the bluffs to build a general store in 1887; other settlers soon began using chalk  for
the foundations of their hom es. T he m ine stood idle for a num ber of y ears and was reopened in the 1930s by  a
paint com pany . T he chalk  was used in paint, whitewash, cem ent, polishes, and chick en feed. T he Nebrask a State
Gam e and Park s Com m ission purchased the land in 1967 to preserve the bluffs as a way side park . 

                                                                        President Frank lin D. Roosevelt initiated the Prairie States Forestry
Project in 1935 to com bat severe w ind-caused soil erosion that happened during the Dust Bowl day s. From  1939
until 1942, the U.S. Forest Service w ork ed w ith groups in the Great Plains to plant nearly  220 m illion seedlings to
create 18,600 m iles of w indbreak s on 30,000 farm s. Nebrask a led the effort, planting alm ost 4,170 m iles of
w indbreak s on 6,944 farm s. 
 
                                                        During the Great Depression, low farm  prices, dust storm s, and drought
encouraged unrest am ong farm ers and w ork ers across Nebrask a. Violence erupted in Loup City  on June 14, 1934,
after rum ors spread that w om en poultry  w ork ers at the Fairm ont Cream ery  plant m ight strik e for higher wages.
Ella Reeve “Mother” Bloor of the Am erican Com m unist Party  organiz ed a dem onstration of support on the
courthouse lawn. Local residents clashed w ith protesters. T he resulting jail sentences and fines levied against
Bloor and other protest organiz ers effectively  m ark ed the end of the attem pt by  the far left to organiz e farm ers
and work ers in Nebrask a during this tim e. 

(144) Chalk Mine.

(293) The Prairie States Forestry Project.

(393) The Loup City Riot, 1934. 
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Historical Highlights
                                       Cantonme nt McKean was e stablished on the Oregon T rail in
1863 in re sponse  to inte nsifie d Indian raids on pione e rs and se ttle rs. Re named Fort
Cottonw ood and the n Fort McPhe rson, the post se rve d to prote ct trave l and
communication in the Platte  Valle y . Fort McPhe rson was also a home base for scouting
partie s and a starting point for military  fie ld campaigns in the late  1860s. T he fort was
abandone d in 1880. 

                                                                   As ove rland fre ighting and trave l incre ase d,
e stablishme nts know n as road ranche s poppe d up e ve ry  fe w mile s along the ove rland
trail. Road ranche s provided lodging and provisions for trave le rs. Many  ranche s w e re
scorne d for poor se rvice and unsanitary  conditions, although some ranche s w e re  know n
for the ir produce and imports for sale . Afte r the Union Pacific Railroad line  was
constructe d through the area, the demand for road ranche s decline d.
 
                                  William Frede rick Cody  (1846-1917), also know n as Buffalo Bill, was
the most notable  Nebraskan of his day . His "Wild We st" e xhibition tours in the  U.S. and
abroad made Cody  a living embodime nt of the Ame rican We st. Cody  came to Nebraska in
1869 as a guide and scout for the U.S. Army  at Fort McPhe rson. He also guided w ealthy
sport hunte rs on buffalo hunts. Cody  first took the stage as Buffalo Bill in 1872 and
formed his “Wild We st” show in 1883. He built Scout’s Re st in 1886 as a place to re lax
be tw e e n tours.

(197) Fort McPherson .

(194) Road Ran ches Alon g the Platte. 

(232) Scout’s Rest. 
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Historical Highlights
(85) Mari Sandoz (1896-1966).                                                       Born in S he ridan County , Mari S andoz  was the daughte r of
se ttle rs in the uppe r Niobrara re g ion. S he was a historian, nove list, and teache r, whose  g re ate st
achie ve me nt was w riting a se rie s of six books de picting life  on the Plains through the le ns of
how me n shaped the Plains and how it shaped them.

                                                This Prisone r of War (POW) Camp house d 3,000 me n from June
1943 until the camp close d in S e pte mbe r 1945. Most of the POWs w e re  membe rs of Ge rmany ’s
Afrika Korps. The POWs w e re  allow e d to work on farms and ranche s in the area and rece ive d a
wag e  g uarante e d by  the Ge ne va Conve ntion. The labor provided by  the POWs be ne fite d
Nebraska agriculture  because  many  farmhands w e re  drafte d during the war. Afte r re turning to
Ge rmany  once the war e nded, some POWs re turne d to the U.S . to become citiz e ns.

                                                         An obscure  tactic use d by  the Japane se  military  during World
War II, was building and re le asing 9,000 hy drog e n-fille d pape r balloons to carry  small bombs to
North Ame rica, w ith the inte nt to se t fire s and inflict casualtie s. Once re le ase d, the balloons
rose  30,000 fe e t in the atmosphe re , whe re  w inds transporte d them across the Pacific Ocean.
A balloon was se e n floating east in February  1945 in S he ridan County . Parts of five  balloon bombs
w e re  re cove re d in Nebraska; 285 balloon-bomb incide nts w e re  re porte d in North Ame rica. Only
afte r the war e nded w e re  the my ste rious pape r balloon bombs e xplaine d.  

(299) German POW Camp. 

(505*) Japanese Balloon Bombs. 

* In the proce ss of be ing placed in S he ridan County .

C H E R R YS H E R I D A N

D A W E S

G R A N T H O O K E R T H O M A S B L A I N E L O U P

M C P H E R S O N L O G A N

B R O W N

K E Y A  P A H A

B O X
B U T T E
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Historical Highlights
                                              After the slaughter of the bison and the last of the Indian hunts, ranchers m oved into this part of the Republican River country in 1875. Am ong
them  were I. P. and Ira Olive, who used the canyon on their range in 1876. Herds of Texas cattle were delivered to them  here before being driven north to Ogallala. The
influx  of hom esteaders in Nebrask a pushed the Texas trail west to the canyon by 1880. Eventually, the canyon becam e a check point where cattle were check ed for brands
and disease.

                                                         In May 1919, Dr. Frank  A. Brewster of Beaver City and pilot Wade S tevens flew to Herndon, Ks., where Dr. Brew ster perform ed life-saving
surgery on an injured m an. This doctor’s call attracted worldw ide attention because Dr. Brewster m ay have been the first doctor to use an airplane professionally. Dr.
Brew ster was one of a few surgeons serving a large area of Nebrask a and Kansas. Deplorable road conditions m ade travel by car inefficient in em ergencies, so the doctor
purchased an airplane and built a private airstrip. Once he m oved to Holdrege, Dr. Brew ster regularly flew to visit the several hospitals he built in the tw o-state region. 
 
                                                     During the w inter of 1871-1872, Grand Duk e Alex is, fourth son of Tsar Alexander II of Russia, paid a goodw ill visit to the United S tates.
General Phil S heridan arranged for a buffalo hunt to be held in the Grand Duk e’s honor. The hunt took  place January 13-15, 1872, and included the Grand Duk e, Russian
officials, General S heridan, General George Custer, and General Forsyth. Buffalo Bill Cody was the guide and chief hunter. Chief S potted Tail and an encam pm ent of Brule
S ioux  entertained the hunting party w ith a cultural display of dances and a shooting ex hibition.

(126) Texas Trail Canyo n .

(199) Nebraska’s Flying Do cto r.

(218) The Grand Duke Alexis.
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                                                                              The first and greatest robbery of a Union Pacific train took place on September 18, 1877. The legendary Sam Bass and five
companions captured the station-master, destroyed the telegraph, and forced a Union Pacific express train to halt. The outlaws reportedly stole $60,000 in gold and currency
from the express car and about $1,000 and a number of watches from passengers. Sam Bass robbed four more trains in Texas before being killed by Texas Rangers at Round
Rock, Texas, on his 27th birthday in 1878. His epitaph reads "A Brave Man Reposes in Death Here. Why was he not true?"

                                          Embedded in Interstate 80, the Golden Link commemorates the completion of the final portion of Nebraska Interstate Highway 80 between the
Missouri River and the Wyoming border. This 455.3-mile-long ribbon of steel and concrete is a vital link between eastern and western Nebraska. The Golden Link also
commemorates Nebraska's accomplishment for being the first state in the nation to complete its main Interstate system. Started on March 8, 1955, the roadway was
completed on October 19, 1974.

                                                   After escaping from Fort Robinson in early January 1879, 130 Cheyenne climbed the buttes to the south and fled through this area, pursued by 
Third Cavalry soldiers. Soldiers and Cheyenne fought several engagements before the final charge in late January near Antelope Creek. The pursuit continued to near the
Wyoming border before the Cheyenne turned northeast. In a final charge by the soldiers, the last thirty-two Cheyenne were killed or captured. 

Historical Highlights
(37) Sam Bass and the Big Springs Robbery.

(164) The Golden Link. 

(426) Fighting in the Buttes.
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Historical Highlights
                                                            Rebecca Winters is a symbol of the
pioneer mother who endured great hardships in the westward movement.
Cholera struck her traveling party in the Platte River Valley, where some
died. Rebecca survived until reaching Scotts Bluff County, where her grave
was marked by an iron wagon tire. Her family continued on with the
wagon train and settled in Pleasant Grove, Utah.  

                                                         During World War II, the U.S. Army Air
Forces operated a satellite airfield in Scottsbluff. Twenty-eight farms were
vacated so three runways and approximately 108 buildings could be built
in the fall of 1942. The first troops arrived in early December 1942. B-17
and B-24 bomber, C-47, and glider air, ground and maintenance crews all
trained at Scottsbluff Army Airfield. In 1947, the city of Scottsbluff bought
the airfield for use as a municipal airport. 
 
                                                 In the late summer of 1851, Plains Indian
tribes were summoned by U.S. government officials so tribal chiefs could
sign a treaty and smoke the peace pipe with representatives of the U.S.
President.  An estimated 8,000 to 12,000 Plains Indians joined the assembly.
The parley was originally planned to take place at Fort Laramie. However,
the sheer number of people, horses, and lack of forage caused the assembly
to move downstream. 

(21) Rebec ca Winters, 1802-1852. 

(369A) “The Great Sm oke.” 

(365) Scottsbluff Arm y Airfield.
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The Great Platte River Road
Spring Ranche
Emmanuel Lutheran Church, 1904-1952
School District 35, "The Killough School"
Cowles Consolidated School
The Soldiers' Monument
First Site of Bethel Lutheran Church and Cemetery
Original Townsite of Oak
Harvard Army Air Field
Osco Cemetery and School
Midair Collision of B-17 Bombers

281
334
500

Legislative District 39
Otoe Indians
Platte River History
Lincoln Highway of Elkhorn

62
68
76
78

101
106
129
149
167
168
204
228
270
321
344
345
346
453
461

Legislative District 40
The Ponca Tribe
The Ionia "Volcano"
Aviation Pioneers
O'Neill
The Sage Brothers
Spring Valley Park
O'Neill, Irish Capital of Nebraska
Ponca
Historic Missouri Valley
Scenic Missouri Valley
Cedar County
U.S. Highway 281
Ponca State Park
Hartington - Home of two Nebraska Governors
Lewis and Clark Campsites: Aug 23-25, 1804
Lewis and Clark Campsite: Sept 2, 1804
Lewis and Clark Campsite: Sept 7, 1804
Lost Airmen of WW II
Paragon Cemetery

66
70

103
138
144
150
188
205
230

Legislative District 41
The Blizzard of 1888
Fort Hartsuff, 1874-1881
Kamp Kaleo
Ponca Trail of Tears - White Buffalo Girl
Chalk Mine
Evelyn Sharp
Garfield County
Logan Fontenelle
Fort Hartsuff State Historical Park



Historical Marker Index by Legislative District
Legislative District 47 continued
418
426
467
487
492

Bridgeport, Nebraska
Fighting in the Buttes
Early Irrigation in Cheyenne County
Maginnis Irrigation Flume
Mud Springs

Legislative District 48
21

190
365

369A
369B
369C

Rebecca Winters
Fort Mitchell, 1864-1867
Scottsbluff Army Airfield
The Great Smoke
The Horse Creek Treaty
Map of Horse Creek Treaty Grounds

Legislative District 49
484 New Pennsylvania Cemetery

Legislative District 45 (see Sarpy County map)
10
51
53

186

Otoe Mission
Fontenelle Bank - County Courthouse
First Presbyterian Church
Bellevue Log Cabin

Legislative District 46 (see Lancaster County map)
72

231
254
266
290
396
436
441

The University of Nebraska
The Lewis-Syford House
Lincoln's Founding Block
Giant Glacial Boulder
Pershing Rifles
The North Bottoms
The Nebraska State Historical Society
U.S. Post Office and Courthouse (Old City Hall)

Legislative District 47
1
5

15
16
24
37
56
77
86
97
98
99

113
114
117
130
156
158
160
161
164
192
208
209

209A
246
260
295
302
313
316
348
349
362
371
382
383
391
403

Chimney Rock
Cowboy Capital
Ash Hollow
Fort Sidney
Boot Hill
Sam Bass and the Big Springs Robbery
Discovery Oil Well - Marathon Oil Co
Sidney-Black Hills Trail
The Cheyenne Outbreak
Ogallala
Ash Hollow
Court House Rock, Chimney Rock, and Scott's Bluff
The Great Platte River Road
Big Springs
Nebraska's Earliest Documented Burial
Windlass Hill Pioneer Homestead
Lodgepole and the Union Pacific Railroad
Fort Laramie-Fort Robinson Trail
Ash Hollow Geology
The Sidney-Black Hills Trail
The Golden Link
Hemingford
Cheyenne County
Sidney-Cheyenne County
Geology
John Hollman Grave
Coffee Siding
Narcissa Whitman
Village of Harrison
California Hill
Historic Lodgepole Creek Valley
B-24J Bomber Crash
Amanda Lamme
Sioux Army Depot
Courthouse and Jail Rocks
Phelps Hotel
Waterman Sod House
Camp Clarke Bridge and Sidney Black Hills Trail
Battle of Blue Water

Legislative District 43 continued
275
276
283
299
301
304
320
331
332
333
354
368
375
378
380
390
392
416
425
437
465
471
472
483
493

Flagstaff, 1890
1909 Brick Barracks
Spade Ranch
German P.O.W. Camp
The First Church in Chadron
The Fort Pierre-Fort Laramie Trail
Valleyview
Chadron-Chicago Cowboy Race (1893)
1887 Barracks Row
K-9 Training Area
Camp Sheridan and Spotted Tail Agency
Fort Robinson and the Railroad
Harrop
Bryan Bridge
Ainsworth Army Air Field
Rushville
Buffalo Soldiers at Fort Robinson
The Alliance Army Air Field
The Flight of the Cheyennes
The Council Tree
Fort Robinson-Camp Sheridan-Pine Ridge Indian Agency Road
Mullen, Hooker County
Site of Hecla, Nebraska
Midair Collision of P-47 "Thunderbolt" Fighter Planes, 1944
Survey Valley, Cherry County, Nebraska

Legislative District 44
8

22
25
29
38
39
43
83
84
95

126
128
147
189
199
206
210
218
234
286
347
352
445
446
451
470
485

Massacre Canyon
General Custer in Nebraska
George William Norris, 1861-1944
Wild Horse Spring
Pioneer Crossing
The Republican River Flood of 1935
Champion Water-Powered Mill
Burtons Bend
Frontier County, Stockville
Culbertson, First Hitchcock County Seat
Texas Trail Canyon
The Texas Trail
Norwegian Lutheran Church
The Small Schoolhouse
Nebraska's Flying Doctor
Pawnee Woman's Grave
George E. Johnson
The Grand Duke Alexis
Stone Church
Ingham
McCook Army Air Base
The Leavenworth and Pike's Peak Express
Ward Bond's Boyhood Home
Prisoners of War in Dundy County
Prisoners of War in Hitchcock County
Nature's Gift: The Highway 34 Springs
Granville Cemetery




